INDIRA GANDHI RASHTRIYA URAN SOCIETY

RULES AND REGULATION

- Short Title: These Rules and Regulations may be called the Rules and Regulations of the Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Society (hereinafter briefly called "The Society").
- Definitions: In these Rules and Regulations the following words and 2. abbreviations shall have the meaning given against them, unless the context otherwise signifies:
 - "Akademi" : The Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Akademi (and (a) regional Centres, if any) established and set up by the Society.
 - : The Administrative Ministry in respect of the "Central (b) Government" Aviation Department. Civil
 - "Chairman": Chairman of the Governing Council. (c)
 - : The Governing Council of the Society. (d) "Council"
 - : Director of the Akademi. "Director" (e)
 - : Any of the Rules and Regulation of the Society. (f) "Rules"

3. Authority of the Society.

The following shall be the authorities of the Society:

- The Governing Council. (a)
- The Director. (b)
- Such other authorities (including but not limited to Committee or (c) Committees) appointed or nominated by the Council.

Governing Council. 4.

- The Governing Council of the Society shall consist of the 1. following Members: -
 - Secretary, Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation (Deptt. of (1)Civil Aviation)-Ex-officio Chairman.
 - Chief Secretary, UP Shasan, Lucknow Ex-officio, Member. (2)
 - Joint Secretary (Administration), Ministry of Tourism and (3) Civil Aviation (Department of Civil Aviation) - Ex-officio, Member.
 - Financial Adviser, Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation, (4) (Department of Civil Aviation) - Ex-officio, Finance Member.

Contd....2/-

- (5) Managing Director, Indian Airlines Ex-officio, Member.
- (6) Managing Director, Air India Ex-officio, Member.
- (7) Director General of Civil Aviation- Ex-officio, Member.
- (8) A representative of Indian Air Force- Ex-officio, Member.
- (9) President, Aero Club of India
- (10) Director of the Akademi- Ex-officio, Member.
- (11) Chairman, A. A.I. -Ex-officio Member.

Provided that the Central Government shall have the power to reconstitute the Governing Council as it deems appropriate.

- 4.2 The Members of the governing Council shall be the Members of the Society. The Administrative Officer of the Akademi shall be the non-Member secretary of the Council. The Governing Council shall also constitute that of the Akademi and shall have the powers to establish, maintain and operate the Akademi in all respects.
- 4.3 The Society shall keep a roll of the members of the Council giving their addresses and occupations, and every Member shall sign the same. If a Member of the Council changes his address, he shall notify his new address to the Director, who shall thereupon enter his new address in the roll of the Members. If the Member fails to notify his new address, the address in the roll of Members shall be deemed to be his address.
- 4.4 The Members of the Council or any Committee appointed by the Council shall not be entitled to any remuneration from the Society but non-official Members of the Council or any Committee appointed by it, shall be paid by the Society, such traveling and daily allowance as may be provided for in the Bye-laws to be made in this behalf, in respect of any journey undertaken by them for attending the meetings of the Council or the Committees set by the Council or in connection with any business of the Society,

5. <u>Tenure of Membership of the Council:</u>

- 5.1 The Membership of the Council shall be limited to those who are so appointed by the Central Government.
- 5.2 The term of a Member of the council shall be three years from the date of nomination, but subject to rule 5.3 below.

Contd....3/-

- 5.3 A Member of the Council shall cease to be such a Member of the happening of any of the following events:
 - (a) If he die, or ceases to hold the office by virtue of which he is nominated as such Member.
 - (b) If he is removed or replaced by the central Government for any reason.
- 5.4 A Member of the Council, other than the Chairman or an Exofficio Member, may resign his membership by a letter addressed to the Chairman, and such resignation shall take effect from the date it is accepted by the Chairman.

6. Chairman:

- 6.1 The Secretary, Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation (Department of Civil Aviation) shall be the Ex-officio Chairman of the Council.
- 6.2 The Chairman, in addition to presiding over the meetings of the Council shall perform such functions and shall have such powers as the Council may decide.

7. Meetings and Proceedings of the Council:

- 7.1 Meeting of the Council should be held not less than 2 times a year at such place and date as may be fixed by the Chairman. For the purpose of this rule, each year shall be deemed to commence on the 1st day of April and terminate on the 31st day of March of the following year.
- 7.2 A special meeting of the Council may be called at any other time by the Chairman, either on his own initiative or at the request of not less than four members of the Council.
- 7.3 For every meeting of the Council at least fifteen days notice shall be given to the Members. Non-receipt of the notice of any meeting of the Council of any Member shall not, however, invalidate the proceedings of the meeting.
- 7.4 Four Members, including the Chairman, shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Council.
- 7.5 In case of difference of opinion among the Members, the opinion of the majority shall prevail.

Contd....4/-

-4-

7.6 All proposals involving financial implications shall require concurrence of the finance Member. Where the Finance Member has a difference of opinion with the decisions of the Governing Council on matters having financial implications, these shall be

- referred to the Ministers in charge of the Administrative Ministry and Finance for a decision.
- 7.7 Each Member of the Council, including the Chairman, shall have one vote, and if there be a tie on any question to determined by the Council, the Chairman Shall, in addition, have and exercise a costing vote.
- 7.8 Every meeting of the Council shall be presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Member chosen by the Members of the Council present at the Meeting.
- 7.9 Any resolution except such as are required to be placed before the meetings of the Council and passed therein, may be carried out by circulation among all its members and any resolution, so circulated and approved by a Majority of the Members who have signified their approval or disapproval of such resolution, shall be as effective and binding as if such resolution had been passed at a meeting of the Council.

8. Functions and powers of the Council:

- 8.1 The Council shall be the highest executive body of the Society including the Akademi. It shall be the function of the Council generally to carry out the objects of the Society as set fourth in the Memorandum of Association, including establishment maintenance and operation of the Akademi.
- 8.2 The Council shall be responsible for the organisation, general superintendence, direction and control of the activities of the Akademi and shall exercise all the powers of the Akademi not otherwise provided for in these Rules and Regulations. The Council shall also have the power to review, rescind or modify any decision taken by any other authority of the Society specified in Rule 3.
- 8.3 In the discharge of its functions, the Council shall be guided by such directives on questions of policy as may be given to it by the Central Government. The decision of the Central Government as to whether a question is of policy shall be final.

Contd....5/-

- -5-
- 8.4 The Council shall, enter-alia, exercise the following powers:-
 - (1) Take decisions on questions of policy relating to the administration and working of the Akademi.

- (2) Consider, and approve the programmes of the Akademi within the scope of the objectives of the Society and within the scope of its budget.
- (3) To consider and approve eligibility conditions, duration, selection process and course content for the training programmes.
- (4) Frame Rules and regulations and Bye-laws for the conduct of the affairs of the Akademi, and to add, to amend or repeal them from time to time with the approval of the central Government.
- (5) Consider, approve and authorise operation of the funds of the Society including the Akademi.
- (6) Consider and pass resolution on the Annual Report, the Annual Accounts and the budget estimates of the Society and submit them to the Central Government.
- (7) Draw up development plans of the Society for consideration of the Central Government.
- (8) Appoint Committees for the disposal of any of its business or for tendering advice on any matter pertaining to the administration and management of the Akademi.
- (9) Institute and award fellowships, scholarships, prices and medals.
- (10) Create technical administrative and other posts for the Akademi provided that proposals relating to emoluments structure i.e., adoption of pay scales, allowances and revision thereof and creation of posts of and above the pay scale of Rs. 1500-2000 would need the prior approval of the Government of India in consultation with the Ministry of Finance (Dept. of Expenditure), The Council, while creating posts under its delegated powers, shall be guided by the economy instructions issued by the Central Government from time to time.
- (11) Cooperate and collaborate with other national and/or foreign institutions/international organisations in the field of aeronautics and allied sciences, provided that previous approval of the Central Government Shall be obtained for collaboration with foreign institutions and international organisations.

Contd....6/-

-6-

(12) Acquire by gift, purchase, exchange, lease, hire, or otherwise any property, movable or immovable and to construct, improve alter, demolish or repair buildings, works and constructions, as may be necessary or convenient for carrying on the activities of the Society including the Akademi provided that the previous approval of the Central Government shall be obtained to undertake

- any capital expenditure for purchase, acquisition or construction of any immovable property at the cost exceeding Rs. 2 crores.
- (13) Deal with any property belonging to or vested in the Society including Akademi so as to suit its best interest provided that prior approval of the Central Government shall be obtained for disposal of any immovable property.
- (14) Negotiate, enter into and make contracts and deeds of the Society including the Akademi.
- (15) Delegate, its powers to the Director, and, through him or directly to other Members of Staff of the Akademi or to any Committee appointed by it.
- (16) Receive grants, gifts, donations or other contributions from the Central Government or from any other source, approved by the Central Govt. Provided that no benefaction shall be accepted by the Society, which, in its opinion, involves conditions or obligations contrary to the objectives of the Society.
- (17) To do all such acts and things as are incidental or conducive to the discharge of its functions and attainment of any one or more of the objects specified in the Memorandum of Association.

9. <u>Director:</u>

- 9.1 The Director shall be appointed by the Council with the prior approval of the Central Government. The Director shall hold office for such period and on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Council with the prior approval of the Central Government.
- 9.2 In the event of the post of Director remaining vacant for any reason, it shall be open to the Council to authorize any officer or officers of the Akademi to exercise such powers, functions and duties of the Director, as the Council may deem fit, till a Director is in position.

Contd....7/-

-7-

10. Functions and Powers of the director:

10.1 Subject to the superintendence and control of the Governing Council, the Director shall be the Chief executive of the Akademi and shall be responsible for the day-to-day management of its activities and overall administration of the Akademi. He shall discharge these responsibilities in accordance with the Rules and bye-laws of the society. In case of an emergency, he may take

- Chairman and report to the Council.
- 10.2 It shall be the responsibility of the Director to see that all moneys are expended for the purposes for which they are granted or allotted.
- 10.3 He shall be the custodian of the records and such other property of the Akademi as the Council may commit to his charges.
- 10.4 Subject to the provisions of these Rules and Regulations, and the Bye-laws made there under, the Director shall, enter-alia, exercise the following functions and powers, namely:-
 - (1) All expenditure within the budget grant shall be approved and sanctioned by the Director, or a Member of the staff to whom he had delegated this power with the approval of the Council, provided that such expenditure does not exceed the limits specified in the bye-laws. The Director shall also have the power to make re-appropriations subject to the following conditions:
 - i) Re-appropriation to augment the provisions under the head "Salaries and Allowances" shall require the prior consent of the Council.
 - ii) No re-appropriation shall be made from Capital to Revenue Head and vice-versa.
 - iii) Re-appropriations within the heads of Capital Expenditure to cover expenditure on a new project not included in the budget shall require the prior consent of the Council.
 - (2) Submit the accounts, the budget estimates and other proposals of the Akademi to the Council for its consideration.
 - (3) Conduct all official correspondence on behalf of the Akademi and the Council.
 - (4) Convene meetings of the Council with the approval of the Chairman.

Contd....8/-

-8-

- (5) Keep or cause to be kept proper records and minutes of the proceedings of the Council meetings and be responsible for implementation of the resolutions passed by the Council.
- (6) Assign tasks to the staff Members of the Akademi, manage the undertaking of these tasks and exercise overall control including disciplinary control.
- (7) Appoint Committees of members of the staff to manage such activities as library, workshop, stores etc.

- (8) To, participate or nominate members of staff to participate in national conferences and, with the approval of the Council, in international conferences.
- (9) Execute all contracts, deeds and assurances of property made on behalf of the Akademi after obtaining the approval of the Council.
- (10) Draw, make, accept, endorse cheques, notes or other negotiable instruments for the purposes of the Akademi.
- (11) Re-delegate some of his powers to any of his subordinates, with the prior approval of the Council.
- (12) Exercise such other powers as may be assigned to him by these Rules and Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.
- 10.5 In the discharge of his functions in relation to the Council, the Director shall be assisted by the Administrative Officer of the Akademi.

11. <u>Functions and Powers of the other authorities and officers:</u>

The powers and duties other than those mentioned in these Rules, of authorities and officers shall be as specified by the Council or in the Bye-laws framed for the purpose.

12. <u>Delegation of powers:</u>

For facilitating smooth running of the Akademi, the Council may delegate such powers vested in it, as may be necessary, to the Director, and through him or directly, to other Members of the staff of the Akademi or to Committees appointed by it.

13. Fund of the Society:

- 13.1 The Society shall maintain a Fund to which shall be credited:
 - i) All moneys provided by the Central Government.
 - ii) All fees and other charges received by the Akademi.
 - iii) All moneys received by the Society and/or the Akademi by way of grants, gifts, donations or other contributions.

Contd....9/-

-9-

- 13.2 All moneys credited to the fund shall be deposited in such banks and accounted for in such manner as the Council may, with the approval of the Central Government decide.
- 13.3 The bank account of the Society and the Akademi shall be kept in the name of the Akademi and shall be operated upon jointly by any two officers out of the Director, Administrative Officer and the Accounts Officer as may be designated by the Council.
- 13.4 The Fund and property of the society/Akademi, however, derived, shall be applied towards promotion of the objects set fourth in the Memorandum of Association subject, nevertheless,

Central Government shall be subject to such limitations (if any) as the Central Government may impose from time to time.

14. Accounts and Audit:

- 14.1 The Director shall prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in such form as may be worked out by the Council in Consultation with the Central Government.
- 14.2 The Accounts of the Society (including that of the Akademi) shall be audited annually by a Chartered Accountant or Accounts as defined in the Chartered accounts Act, 1949 (XXVIII of 1949) to be appointed by the Council.
- 14.3 The Comptroller and auditor Central of India shall if so decided by the Central Government have the right to demand production of books, accounts, connected vouchers and other documents and papers and to inspect the offices of the Akademi.
- 14.4 The Accounts of the Akademi as audited and certified by the Chartered Account appointed for the purpose, or by the Comptroller and Auditor General, as the case may be, shall be forwarded annually to the Central Government.

15. Annual Report:

Within six months of the close of every financial year, the Society shall submit to the Central Government an annual report on the working of the Akademi during the previous year, the audited statement of accounts showing the receipts and expenditure for the previous year together with the Audit Report.

16. Budget:

The annual budget of the Akademi shall be drawn up by the Director in a format prescribed by the Central Government. It shall be considered and adopted by the Council with or without modification in September each year and then transmitted to the Central Government.

Contd....10/-

-10-

17. Insurance and Provident Fund:

The society and the Akademi shall constitute for the benefits of its employees, including the Director, in such manner and subject to such condition as may be prescribed by the Bye-laws such insurance, Provident Fund and other schemes, as it may deem fit.

18. Appointment:

All selections and appointments of the staff of the Akademi except that of the Director, shall be made in accordance with the procedure laid down in the bye-laws, by:

a) The Council, if the appointment is made in the grade equivalent to Group 'A' and above in Central Government.

b) The Director, in other cases.

Provided that in all appointments and promotions to posts in the Akademi other than those exempted by the Government from the purview of reservation for Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes shall be made in accordance with Government of India orders issued from time to time.

19. Bye-laws:

The Council shall, with the sanction of the Central Govt. frame, amend or repeal Bye-laws not inconsistent with these Rules, for the administration and management of the affairs of the Akademi, and in particular to provide for the following matters:-

- (1) The preparation of budget estimates, the sanctioning of expenditure, making and execution of contracts, maintenance of accounts and audit.
- (2) The classification and procedure for appointment of officers and staff of the Akademi.
- (3) The terms and tenure of appointment, rules of disciplines and other conditions of service of the officers and staff of the Akademi.
- (4) The terms and conditions governing deputation of officers and staff.
- (5) Conduct of business by the Council and the Committees constituted by it, the powers and functions of such committees and the terms of office of their membership.
- (6) The constitution of insurance, provident fund and other schemes for the benefit of the employees of the Akademi.
- (7) Fixation of fees and other charges for training and other facilities provided by the Akademi.

Contd....11/-

-11-

- (8) The terms and conditions governing fellowships, scholarships, medals and prizes.
- (9) Such other maters as may be necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Akademi, including those which, by these rules are to be or may be prescribed by the Bye-laws.

20. Alteration of the Rules and Regulations:

The Council may alter these Rules and Regulations at any time by a Resolution passed by a majority of two-thirds of the members present and voting at any meeting of the Council duty convened for the purpose. Such alterations shall take effect after they are approved by the Central Government.

21. Alteration or extension of the purposes of the Society:

Subject to the provisions of the Societies Registration Act, 1860, and subject to the prior approval of the Central Government, the Council may alter, extend or abridge any purpose or purposes for which the Society (including the Akademi) is established.

22. Seal of the society:

The Council, shall provided a seal of the Society and also provide for its safe custody, and/never be used except by the authority of the Council previously given. One Member of the Council shall sign every such instrument shall be countersigned by the Director or by some other person appointed by the Council.

23. Acts and proceedings not to be invalidated by vacancies etc.

No act of the Council or the Akademi or any other body set up under these rules or the Bye-laws framed thereunder, shall be invalid merely by reasons of:-

- (a) any vacancy or defect in the election, nomination or appointment of a person acting as a Member thereof, or
- (b) any irregularity in its procedure not affecting the merits of the case.
- 24. The Society may sue or be sued in the name of the Director or such person as shall be determined by the Rules and Regulations of the Society and in default of such determination, such person as shall be appointed by the Council.

Contd....12/-

-12-

25. If, on winding up or dissolution of the Society, there shall remain, after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities and property whatsoever, the same shall be dealt with in such manner as the Central Government may decide.

- 1. Certified that this is a correct copy of the Rules and Regulations of the Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Society.
- 2. For all things not specifically provided for in these Rules and Regulations, the provisions of the Societies Registration Act, 1860, (XXI of 1860) will apply.

HIDINA GAIDHI KASHIKIYA UKAN SUCIETY

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

- 1. <u>Name of the Society</u>: The name of the Society shall be Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Society. (hereinafter called the 'Society').
- 2. <u>Locations</u>: The registered office of the Society shall be at Fursatganj, District Rae Bareli in the State of Uttar Pradesh.
- 3. <u>Definitions</u>: In this Memorandum, unless the context otherwise signifies:
 - (a) 'Akademi' means the Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Akademi or Akademies (and includes regional Centres if any) established by the Society.
 - (b) 'Central Government' means the Administrative Ministry in respect of the Civil Aviation Department.
 - (c) 'Director' means the Director of the Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Akademi.
- 4. (1) Objects: The objects of the Society are:
 - (a) To establish, set up, manage, maintain the Indira Gandhi Rashtriya Uran Akademi to achieve all or any of the objects and purposes hereinafter mentioned:
 - (b) To promote and develop science of aeronautics and Civil Aviation in India in the interest of general public, including foreign nationals:
 - (c) To organize and hold training for commercial pilots, flying instructors and other persons involved or interested in Civil Aviation including training in twin-engine endorsement/instrument rating:
 - (d) To hold and organize refresher courses for the State Government pilots and Commercial Pilot Licence holders:
 - (e) To organize conferences, lectures, seminars and set up study groups and training programmes for the purpose of promotion and development of Civil aviation and science of aeronautics:
 - (f) To hold and organize such other training programmes relevant to Civil aviation and science of aeronautics as determined by the Society from time to time:
 - (g) To assist and guide other Societies and associations or flying schools in India for any of the: above objects; and
 - (h) To undertake such other activities as are relatable to any of the objects as mentioned above.

Contd....2/-

- (2) With a view to promoting the foregoing objects the Society shall have the following powers: -
 - (a) To acquire by gift, purchase, exchange, lease, hire or otherwise any property, movable and/or immovable and to construct, improve, alter, demolish or repair buildings, works and constructions as may be necessary or convenient for carrying on the activities of the Society including the Akademi.
 - (b) To establish and maintain aerodromes, landing grounds, buildings, aircraft and such other facilities as are necessary for carrying out the objectives of the Society.
 - (c) To institute and award certificates of efficiency relating to flying/aeronautics.
 - (d) To publish books, periodicals and magazines to disseminate knowledge pertaining to the field of aeronautics.
 - (e) To manage, improve or develop all or any part of the property of the Society, both movable and immovable.
 - (f) To organize either alone or jointly with any other Association, Society or Firm, Camps, Seminars, Competitions relating to the field of Aeronautics and to offer, give or contribute towards prizes, medals and awards.
 - (g) To levy fees or other charges for training and/or other services/ facilities provided by the Society/Akademi at rates specified by the Governing Council.
 - (h) To institute appropriate fellowship, offer prizes and arrange scholarships and stipends to trainees in furtherance of the objects of the Society.
 - (i) To constitute or cause to be constituted Regional Branches of the Akademi at convenient centres as may from time to time be determined by the Society.
 - (j) To invest and deal with funds and money of the Society including the Akademi.
 - (k) To undertake and accept the management of any endowment or trust or donation in furtherance of the objects of the Society.

Contd...3/-

- the Akademi and vary and rescind such contracts.
- (m) To make rules and regulations for the conduct of the affairs of the Society and to add, to amend, vary or rescind them from time to time with the approval of the Central Government.
- (n) To do such other things as may be necessary or incidental or conducive to the attainment of all/or any of the objects of the Society.
- 5. The Government of India may appoint one or more persons to review the work and progress of the Society including the Akademi and to hold inquiries into the affairs thereof and to report thereon in such manner as the Government of India may stipulate. Upon receipt of such report, the Government of India may take such action and issue such direction as it may consider necessary in respect of any of the matters dealt with in the report and the Society including the Akademi shall be bound to comply with such directions.
- 6. Income and property of the Society including the Akademi howsoever derived shall be applied towards the promotion of the objects as set forth in its Memorandum of Association subject nevertheless in respect of the expenditure of grants made by the Government of India to such limitations as the Government of India may from time to time impose. No part of the income and property of the Society shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividends, bonus or otherwise howsoever by way of profit to the persons who at any time are or have been members of the Society or to any of them or to any person claiming through them or any of them provided that nothing herein contained shall prevent the payment in good faith of remuneration of any member thereof or any person in return for any service rendered to the society including the Akademi or for traveling allowance, halting or other similar charges.
- 7. Governing Council: The names, address and occupations of the first members of the Governing Council of the Society, to whom, by the Rules and Regulations of the Society, the management of its affairs is entrusted are as follows:-

<u>(1)</u>	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
Sl. No.	Name	Occupation	Address	Designation in the Society.
1.	Dr. S. S. Sidhu	Secretary, M/o T & C.A.		Chairman Chairman
2.	Sh. G. Mehra	Chief Secretary, UP Shasan, Luc	, know.	Ex-officio Member.
3.	Sh. J. N. Kaul	Jt. Secretary, M/o. T & CA (I Of Civil Aviatio		Member (Ex-officio)
4.	Sh. K.J.M. Shetty	Financial Advise (Deppt. Of Civil		Finance Member (Ex-officio)
5.	Capt. K. Chadha	Managing Directindian Airlines.	tor	Member (Ex-officio)
6.	Capt. D. Bose	Managing Direct Air India.	tor	Member (Ex-officio)
7.	AM C.K.S. Raje AVSM	Director General Civil Aviation.		Member (Ex-officio)
8.	AVM P. Singh, AVSM VM&Bar	Representative of Indian Air Force		Member (Ex-officio)
9.	Sh. S.K. Sharma	President, Aero O of India.	Club	Member
10.		Director, Indira (Rashtriya Uran Akademi.	Gandhi	Member (Ex-officio)

8. We, the several persons whose names and address are given below, having associated ourselves for the purposes described in this Memorandum of Association and set our several and respective hands here-unto and from ourselves into Society under the Societies Registration (Act XXI of 1860) this 15th day of February 1985.

Name, Occupation Signature of Name, Occupation Signature of No. and address of Members and address of Witnesses. Members. Witnesses. 2 3 4 1. Dr. S. S. Sidhu, Secretary, M/o T & C.A. Sardar Patel Bhavan New Delhi. Sd/-Sh. J. N. Kaul, Joint Secretary, M/o. T&CA (Deptt. of Civil Aviation) S.P. Bhavan, New Delhi. Sd/-Sh. K.J.M. Shetty, Financial Adviser, (Deppt. Of Civil Aviation) S.P. Bhavan. New Delhi. Sd/-4. Capt. K. Chadha, Managing Director, Indian Airlines, Airlines House, Gurudwara Rakabganj, Road, New Delhi. Sd/-5. AM C.K.S. Raje, AVSM. Director General, Civil Aviation, R.K. Puram, East Block-II

Sd/-

New Delhi 110066.

Sl. Name, Occupation Signature of	Signature of	Name, Occupation		
No. and address of Witnesses.	Members and address of			
Members.	Witnesses.			
1 2	3	4	5	
6. Sh. S.K. Sharma, President Aero Club of India, United India Life Bldg, 'F' Block, 3 rd floor, Connaught Place, New Delhi.	Sd/-			
AVM P. Singh AVSM VM &Bar (Representative of Indian Air Force) Air Headquarters, Vayu Bhavan, New Delhi.	Sd/-			